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Eschberger - DNR, Amy <amy.eschberger@state.co.us>

Lyons Quarry - CDOT Request
Strenge, Ernst <estrenge@bouldercounty.org> Wed, Jul 1, 2020 at 10:56 AM
To: Jeremy DEUTO <jeremy.deuto@lafargeholcim.com>
Cc: Amy Eschberger - DNR <amy.eschberger@state.co.us>, "Tess M. Ellender" <tellender@mullereng.com>, "Jeffrey H. Wulliman
(Jhwulliman@mullereng.com)" <Jhwulliman@mullereng.com>, "Whisman, Janis" <jwhisman@bouldercounty.org>, "Hirt, David"
<dhirt@bouldercounty.org>, "Atherton-Wood, Justin" <jatherton-wood@bouldercounty.org>

Jeremy,

 

Please see the attached letter regarding the request to use Lyons Quarry for a staging area for SH 7 repairs and the potential to
re-open mining at the site for the SH 7 project.

 

Let us know if you have questions or would like to set up a meeting to discuss.

 

Thank you,

Ernst

 

Ernst Strenge | Senior Planner

Boulder County Parks & Open Space

(303) 678-6269 (office) | (303) 319-9615 (cell)

estrenge@bouldercounty.org

 

BoulderCountyOpenSpace.org
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Parks & Open Space 
5201 St. Vrain Road • Longmont, Colorado 80503  

303.678.6200 • Fax: 303.678.6177 • www.BoulderCountyOpenSpace.org 

Deb Gardner County Commissioner Elise Jones County Commissioner 

 

Matt Jones County Commissioner 

 

 

July 1, 2020 

 

 

 

Jeremy Deuto 

Aggregate Industries 

1687 Cole Blvd. Suite 300 

Golden, CO 80401 

 

Re: Quarry Site at Hall Ranch 2 Open Space Property 

 

Dear Mr. Deuto: 

 

Thank you for meeting with Boulder County Parks & Open Space staff (Justin Atherton-

Wood and David Hirt) on June 1st during the Division of Reclamation, Mining, and 

Safety’s (DRMS) monitoring visit of Lyons Quarry (Permit M-1977-141).  As the county’s 

steward of this open space property, we appreciate being included in these meetings and 

all discussions about the reclamation of the quarry. 

 

It is our understanding that during the visit you let DRMS know that Aggregate Industries 

has been approached by Colorado Department of Transportation’s (CDOT) engineering 

consultant for State Highway 7 (Mueller Engineering) about the potential to use the mine 

site for a staging area for its upcoming highway repairs and the potential to re-open mining 

operations to sell materials to CDOT for this work. Parks & Open Space has also been 

approached by Mueller Engineering about using the site as a staging area, but not about 

additional mining. 

 

The county has several constraints and concerns related to these proposed plans that we 

want to draw to your attention: 

 

• The deed by which Boulder County acquired the Hall Ranch Open Space conveyed 

all mineral rights associated with the property to the county, but the county’s 

ownership of the minerals is only “for so long as no mining, exploration, drilling, 

production or other development of extraction of Minerals occurs upon or under 

the property”. Your proposal to remove additional material and convey it to CDOT 

may constitute “mining” and “extraction” of minerals that would violate the deed 

restriction and cause the county to be subject to the Hall family’s right of reverter. 

Boulder County will not agree to allow a violation of the deed restriction. The deed 

is enclosed for your information. 

 

• Boulder County purchased the Hall Ranch Open Space with the proceeds from an 

open space tax passed by the voters. The sales tax ballot language and Boulder 

County’s Comprehensive Plan restrict the uses to which open space property may 

be put. Mining is not an open space use. Boulder County would have to be 

convinced, and be able to show, that removal of additional material from the mine 

would enhance the open space attributes of the property. 
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• Aggregate Industries’ lease that allowed it to mine material from the property has expired. 

Any sale of material from Aggregate Industries to CDOT or any other party would 

constitute an unauthorized sale of the county’s property. Aggregate Industries may not sell 

the county’s property to CDOT unless pursuant to a lease from Boulder County, and the 

county can only agree to enter into a lease if it has assurances that, in addition to not 

violating the terms of the deed restriction, there are sufficient benefits to the public that it 

can be justified as a benefit to the open space program. 

 

As you may know, Boulder County has been working on plans for how to manage the property for 

public recreational and natural resource conservation purposes following the completion of 

reclamation by Aggregate Industries, which had been scheduled for the end of February 2021. The 

county understands that DRMS has agreed to an extension of the reclamation timeline until 

February 2022 due to COVID-19, and the county wants to maintain this schedule so that the public 

may begin to enjoy the benefit of the substantial investment it made in this property in 2011.  

 

At the same time, Parks & Open Space appreciates its working relationship with Aggregate 

Industries, which we have maintained since the county purchased the property. If Aggregate wants 

to propose changes to the existing reclamation plan based on the request made by CDOT’s 

engineers, we invite you to share full details with us as soon as possible. If Parks & Open Space is 

supportive of Aggregate Industries’ revised plans, Parks & Open Space may elect to approach the 

Hall family about seeking a waiver from the deed restriction and try to work within the sales tax 

use restrictions and other county policies.  

 

For the county to be able to approve of any changed plans, Parks & Open Space would expect that, 

at a minimum, any modified reclamation plans would include the following important aspects: 

 

• No further disturbances outside the existing disturbed mine site. 

• Leave as much naturally variable slopes along the highwall as possible and blend them 

with the surrounding landscape. 

• Leave as much dacite exposed at the base of the highwall as possible for future geological 

interpretation. 

• Open the floodplain and remove all crusher fines and mining infrastructure (pipes, etc.) 

within the former processing / stockpiling / storage area (i.e. Phase 2 of the most recent 

DRMS approved technical revision). Although the 2013 flood deposited materials within 

this area, there is still a thick layer of crusher fines that was laid down during mining. Parks 

& Open Space and Aggregate Industries have discussed on several occasions the potential 

to excavate soil pits in this area together to determine the location and extent of this 

material, but this has not yet occurred.  

• Work with Parks & Open Space on opportunities to realign South St. Vrain Creek through 

the floodplain to its historic and natural alignment. This may include either creating a swale 



that would carry flood waters across the site or roughing in a potential future new 

alignment. 

• Complete reclamation by February 28, 2022. 

 

Thank you for your attention to these important matters. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Janis Whisman 

Real Estate Division Manager 

jwhisman@bouldercounty.org 

(303) 678-6263 

 

 
 

Ernst Strenge 

Senior Planner 

estrenge@bouldercounty.org 

(303) 678-6269 

 

Cc:  

• State of Colorado Division of Reclamation, Mining, and Safety, c/o Amy Eschberger 

(amy.eschberger@state.co.us) 

• Muller Engineering Company, c/o Tess Ellender (tellender@mullereng.com) and Jeff 

Wulliman (jhwulliman@mullereng.com) 
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